
BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES 

Michelle Draper 
Board Chair  

Ray Martin 
Board Vice-Chair 

Sherry Adams 
Orville Chubb 
Ken Gibson 
Nathan Ip 
Michael Janz 
Cheryl Johner 
Bridget Stirling 

Edmonton School District No. 7 
One Kingsway 

Edmonton, Alberta 

McCauley Chambers 
Board Meeting #11 Tuesday, March 21, 2017 

2:00 p.m. 

A.  O Canada 

B.  Roll Call 

C.  Approval of the Agenda 

D.  Communications from the Board Chair 

E.  Communications from the Superintendent of Schools 

F.  Minutes: 

1. DRAFT – Board Meeting #10  – March 7, 2017

G.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives 
(NOTE:  Pre-registration with the Board Office [780-429-8443] is 
required by 4:30 p.m. on Monday, March 20, 2017 to speak under this 
item.)  

H.  Reports: 

2. Report #3 of the Caucus Committee (From the Meeting Held
March 7, 2017)
(Information)

3. Three-Year Capital Plan 2018-2021 Extension
(Information) (NO ENCLOSURE)

4. Motion re Government of Alberta Allocations of Capital Project
Funding
(Recommendation)

5. Second, and Third and Final Reading of Policy AE.BP Welcoming,
Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and Working Environments
(Recommendation)

I.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives – 5:00 p.m.  
(NOTE:  Pre-registration with the Board Office [780-429-8443] is 
required by 4:30 p.m. on Monday, March 20, 2017to speak under this 
item.) 

Page 1 of 2 

Page 1 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



J.  Other Committee, Board Representative and Trustee Reports 

K.  Trustee and Board Requests for Information 

L.  Notices of Motion 

M.  Meeting Dates 

N.  Adjournment 

Page 2 of 2 

Page 2 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Edmonton School District No. 7 

MINUTE BOOK 

1 
March 7, 2017 

Board Meeting #10 

Minutes of the Board Meeting of the Trustees of the Edmonton School District No. 7 of the 
Province of Alberta held in McCauley Chambers in the Centre for Education on Tuesday,  
March 7, 2017 at 2:00 p.m. 

Present: 
Trustees 

Orville Chubb 
Michelle Draper 

Ken Gibson 

Nathan Ip 
Michael Janz 
Cheryl Johner 

Ray Martin 
Bridget Stirling 

Officials 

Grace Cooke 
Todd Burnstad 
Ron MacNeil 
Karen Mills 

Kathy Muhlethaler 
Lorne Parker 
Kent Pharis 

Madonna Proulx 

Leona Morrison 
Darrel Robertson 
Mike Suderman 

Board Chair:   Michelle Draper Recording Secretary:  Shirley Juneau 

Staff Group Representatives 

Edmonton Public Teachers – Nels Olsen, President 
CUPE Local 474 (Custodial) – John Vradenburgh, President 
CUPE Local 3550 (Support Staff) – Carol Chapman, President 

The Board Chair called the meeting to order with recognition that we are on Treaty 6 Territory, a 
traditional meeting grounds, gathering place, and travelling route to the Cree, Saulteaux, 
Blackfoot, Métis, Dene and Nakota Sioux.  We acknowledge all the many First Nations, Métis, and 
Inuit whose footsteps have marked these lands for centuries. 

The Board Chair advised that the firm alarm system at the Centre for Education is a Two Stage 
alarm system.  Stage One is a single repeating alarm tone indicating a warning only and that 
evacuation is not required.  Stage Two is a triple repeating alarm tone indicating that evacuation is 
required. 

A.  O Canada  

B. Roll Call:  (2:00 p.m.) 

Page 3 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
 
 

  

Edmonton School District No. 7 

 
 

MINUTE BOOK 

2 
March 7, 2017 

 

The Superintendent advised that Trustee Adams was absent.  All other Trustees were present. 
 
C. Approval of the Agenda 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Ip: 
 “That the agenda for the March 7, 2017, board meeting be approved as printed.”  

(UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
D. Communications from the Board Chair 
 

The Board Chair advised that on March 1, 2017, she had the honour of bringing greetings at 
the 53rd Annual Edmonton Public Schools Night of Music. In attendance with her were Vice-
Chair Martin, Trustees Chubb, Stirling and Ip and Superintendent Robertson. There were also 
several staff groups in attendance and many of the District’s Leadership Team. 

The Board Chair shared that Edmonton Public Schools is proud to offer school music programs 
and classes that encourage students to pursue their musical talents.  She stated that music is a 
powerful force of expression and a tool to enrich student learning experiences.  The theme for 
the evening was music From the Head and the Heart. The Board Chair thanked everyone who 
played a part in this wonderful and successful event. 

The Board Chair reported that she had the opportunity to attend the Speech from the Throne, 
at the Alberta Legislature.  On behalf of Edmonton Public Schools,  the Board Chair advised 
that Edmonton Public Schools is pleased to see that Bill 1:  An Act to Reduce School Fees and 
the funding to support it has been tabled. This Bill, if proclaimed, will bring greater consistency 
to fees charged to parents in all school districts across the province. The Board Chair advised 
that Edmonton Public Schools supports every measure to ensure public education is 
affordable for all parents and children.  She stated that if Bill 1 is passed, it will come into 
effect in the 2017 -2018 school year. 

The Board Chair stated that the government intends to fund more new school construction, 
which is necessary to respond effectively to Edmonton's rapid growth.  

The Board Chair advised that March 8, 2017, will be the 108th anniversary of International 
Women’s Day. The 2017 theme is Be Bold for Change.  International Women’s Day was 
created as an opportunity to recognize women around the world for their political, economic, 
and social achievements.  

On behalf of the Board of Trustees, the Board Chair thanked all women working within the 
District, who make vital contributions to student learning, public education and the success of 
Edmonton Public Schools. 

The Board Chair thanked the teachers from the District who are working on the province’s 
new curriculum development.  She said that the Board is very proud that dozens of Edmonton 
Public School’s staff are assisting Alberta Education in this work. 

Page 4 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
 
 

  

Edmonton School District No. 7 

 
 

MINUTE BOOK 

3 
March 7, 2017 

 

She explained that curriculum development is a normal and ongoing part of education which 
the District will continue to support.  Some of the District’s curriculum is 30 years old, so the 
District’s students and teachers need updated materials.  

The Board Chair stated that the Board wants to ensure a safe and respectful learning and 
working environment for the District’s staff, even on their projects outside the classroom.  

Staff working on the new curriculum development should not be subjected to an 
unprecedented public outing.  The focus must be on the product of work, not the people 
creating it.  The Board Chair encouraged Albertans to provide input into the curriculum 
development process by participating in the government’s public consultations or by 
contacting the Minister of Education. 

 
E. Communications from the Superintendent of Schools 
 
The Superintendent extended a warm welcome to the Edwin Parr award nominees, their families, 
principals and staff that were present to celebrate and to recognize to the contributions of the first 
year teachers. 
 
F. Minutes 
 
 1.  Board Meeting #9 – February 28, 2017 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Stirling: 
 “That the minutes of Board Meeting #9 held February 28, 2017, be approved as 

printed.”  (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
G.  Recognition 
 
 2.  Edwin Parr Teacher Award 
 
Ms Bethany Briones, a teacher at Ormsby School, was selected as the District’s honourary 
nominee for the Edwin Parr Teacher Award. 
 
There was a short break in the meeting. 
 
H.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives 
 
There were no registered speakers for this item. 
 
I. Reports 
 
 3.  Strategic Plan Update – Quality Infrastructure for All 

Page 5 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
 
 

  

Edmonton School District No. 7 

 
 

MINUTE BOOK 

4 
March 7, 2017 

 

 
The Trustees received a presentation and information regarding quality infrastructure for all.  
 
 4.  Process and Timeline for the 2017-2018 Budget 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Janz: 
 “1.   That in accordance with Section 5.4 of the Trustees' Handbook, the Caucus 

Committee unanimously approve consideration of Recommendation 2.” 
(UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 

 
 “2.   That the Process and Timeline for Review of the 2016-2017 Results and the 2017-

2018 Plans be approved.”  (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
 5.  Staff Group Presentations re 2017-2018 Proposed Budget 
 
Mr. Nels Olsen, President of Local 37 of the Alberta Teachers’ Association presented the Local’s 
brief.   
 
John Vradenburgh, President CUPE Local 474 (Custodial Staff), presented the Local’s brief. 
 
Ms Carol Chapman, President CUPE Local 3550 (Support Staff), presented the Local’s brief. 
 
The Board Chair thanked Ms Chapman, Mr. Olsen and Mr. Vradenburgh for their presentations 
and advised that a response to the staff group presentations will be prepared for public board.  
 
Additional Communications from the Board Chair 
 
The Board Chair reported that she, Trustee Ip, the Superintendent and several others from the 
Leadership Team attended the High School Culinary Awards event at the Shaw Conference 
Centre.  She shared that not only was the meal fantastic, but out of the 17 teams competing 
from across Edmonton and area, Edmonton Public Schools reigned supreme.  The Board Chair 
reported that Jasper Place High School was awarded first place and M.E. LaZerte School second 
place.  She shared that two students from Harry Ainlay School received full scholarships to NAIT 
and that a student from Jasper Place was awarded the Pastry Chef Scholarship.  The Board Chair 
expressed that these accomplishments are exemplary examples of the District’s career 
pathways work.  On behalf of the Board of Trustees, she congratulated everyone involved.  
 
J. Other Committee, Board Representative and Trustee Reports 
 
Trustee Stirling reported that she attended the International Women's Day event on  
March 5, 2017, at City Hall.  She shared that this event celebrated the achievements of women 
and the gains made in social, political, and economic equality while also recognizing the need to 

Page 6 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
 
 

  

Edmonton School District No. 7 

 
 

MINUTE BOOK 

5 
March 7, 2017 

 

continue to work to improve the conditions of women's lives both here at home and around the 
world. 
 
Trustee Stirling said that education plays a key role in creating equity for girls and women and 
opens doors that might once have seemed impossible, and in turn, the full participation of girls 
and women uplifts entire communities.  She thanked everyone in the District for their 
contributions to improving gender equity in our schools and our world. 
 
K. Trustee and Board Requests for Information  
 
Trustee Ip requested that the Administration provide a brief report on how traffic pressures on 
Terwillegar Drive is impacting school bus ride times and the District’s ability to transport 
students in south eest Edmonton to schools, both to  and from designated schools and 
alternative programs. 
 
L. Notices of Motion  
 
Trustee Janz served notion of motion that the Edmonton Public School Board advocate to the 
Government of Alberta to develop a framework to ensure Public schools get a fair and equitable 
share of schools, modernizations, portables, and capital project spending.  
 
M. Next Board Meeting Date:  Tuesday, March 21, 2017, at 2:00 p.m. 
 
N.    Adjournment (4:30 p.m.) 
 
The Board Chair adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
 

   
Michelle Draper, Board Chair  Karen Mills, Director Board and 

Superintendent Relations 
       
 

Page 7 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Information Report 

 

1 
 

DATE: March 21, 2017 
 
TO:  Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Trustee Ray Martin, Caucus Committee Chair 
 
SUBJECT: Report #3 of the Caucus Committee (From the Meeting Held March 7, 2017) 
 
ORIGINATOR: Karen Mills, Director Board and Superintendent Relations 
 
REFERENCE: Trustees’ Handbook – Caucus Committee - Section 5.4 
  Trustees’ Handbook –  Section 6 – Board Committees 
  School Act  - Section 61 
 
 
ISSUE 
The Board approved the following recommendations at the March 3, 2015, Board meeting:  That a 
resolution be approved directing that Section 5.4 of the Trustees’ Handbook be revised to give the 
Caucus Committee final decision-making power on certain types of matters, and yet constrain that 
power so it is used only when absolutely necessary.  
 
The following recommendations were approved at the March 7, 2017, Caucus Committee meeting: 
 
Agreement with the City of Edmonton for the Conduct of Elections 
 
1. That authorization for the Superintendent to sign an agreement with the City of Edmonton to 

conduct the school board elections on behalf of Edmonton Public School District No. 7 until 
December 31, 2026 be approved. 

 
BACKGROUND – Recommendation 1 
 
The City of Edmonton has conducted the school board elections for both the Edmonton Public School 
Board and Edmonton Catholic School Board in conjunction with the last eight municipal elections. 
 
The agreement contains provisions for: 
• The City’s Returning Officer serving as Returning Officer for both authorities 
• Sharing of joint costs of the election (on the basis of 60 per cent City of Edmonton, 29 per cent 
   Edmonton Public School Board and 11 per cent Edmonton Catholic School Board) 
 
 Tweddle Place Dry Pond Project – Surplus Declaration 
 
2.  That the land identified be declared surplus to District needs, be approved. 
 
BACKGROUND – Recommendation 2 
 
In 2016, the City of Edmonton approached the District to acquire 2.2 hectares of land at Malcolm 
Tweddle and Edith Rogers schools for municipal purposes. If this land is declared surplus to District 

Page 8 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook.pdf
http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook.pdf
http://www.qp.alberta.ca/1266.cfm?page=s03.cfm&leg_type=Acts&isbncln=9780779733941


Information Report 

 

2 
 

needs, the City intends to construct two dry ponds on the shared site to address storm water 
management concerns. The City has indicated that they are interested in constructing additional dry 
ponds over the coming years, as funding is approved. 
 
Exempt Non-Management Terms and Conditions of Employment 
 
3.  That corrections to vacation entitlements for non-management staff be approved. 
 
BACKGROUND – Recommendation 3 
 
Section 7 of the approved Exempt Non-Management Terms and Conditions of Employment addresses 
vacation entitlements and administration practices. This section was updated to reflect practices for 
administration of changes in vacation entitlements that are used in other staff groups. In making this 
adjustment, typographical errors were made that would have lowered the years of service at which 
higher vacation entitlements are earned. As this was not our intent, we would like to correct those 
errors. 
 
KM:sj 

Page 9 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

1 

Recommendation Report 

DATE: March 21, 2017 
 
TO:  Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Trustee Michael Janz 

 
SUBJECT: Motion re Government of Alberta Allocation of Capital Project Funding 
 
REFERENCE: Trustees’ Handbook – Section 5.2.2 – Notices of Motion 
 
 
 
ISSUE 
Notice of motion was served at the March 7, 2017, Board meeting. 
 
RATIONALE 
There is no other issue more critical to the future of public education than being able to provide the 
right schools in the right places right now.  I want to ensure that provincial decisions are made in a fair, 
transparent, and equitable way.   
 
RELATED FACTS 
1. All schools, portables modernizations, and capital funding to Public and Catholic schools 

are awarded by the provincial government. 
2. Transparent policy from the provincial government is lacking explanations as to how schools are 

prioritized and awarded between different school districts. 
3. Public students and families across Alberta, especially in Edmonton, need their fair and 

equitable share of capital funding, especially for new schools. 
4. Despite only 25 per cent of Albertans being Catholic, the government appears to provide them an 

inequitable amount of school dollars, sometimes between 30-50 per cent. 
5. Fairness and equity in transparent, defensible provincial decision-making would prevent 

unreasonably advantaging one group over another. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the Edmonton Public School Board advocate to the Government of Alberta to develop a 
framework to ensure Public schools get a fair and equitable share of schools, modernizations, 
portables, and capital project spending. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
Should the Board of Trustees approve the recommendation, a letter will be sent to the Minister of 
Infrastructure. 
 
MJ:sj 

Page 10 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook.pdf


 

1 

Recommendation Report 

DATE: March 21, 2017 
 
TO:  Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Trustee Ken Gibson, Policy Review Committee  
                                  Trustee Cheryl Johner, Policy Review Committee 
                                  Trustee Bridget Stirling, Chair, Policy Review Committee 
 
SUBJECT: Second, Third and Final Reading of Policy AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and 

Healthy Learning and Working Environments 
 
ORIGINATOR: Karen Mills, Director Board and Superintendent Relations 
 
RESOURCE 
STAFF: Marnie Beaudoin, Nancy Petersen 
 
REFERENCE: Trustees’ Handbook Section 6.1 – Caucus Committee  

     Board Policy CH.BP – Framework for Policy Development and Review 
 
 
ISSUE 
The Policy Review Committee has developed a new policy, AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy 
Learning and Working Environments, to be given second, third and final reading by the Board of 
Trustees at the March 21, 2017 public Board meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In the spring of 2016, the Policy Review Committee initiated work to develop a new policy, AE.BP 
Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and Working Environments. The development of this 
policy was initiated to ensure alignment of board policies with the School Act. The Board gave first 
consideration to AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and Working Environments at 
the January 31, 2017 public Board meeting. An online survey was posted to the District website to 
obtain stakeholder feedback on AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and Working 
Environments. The survey remained open until February 24, 2017.   
 
RELATED FACTS 

 Policy AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and Working Environments serves as a 
parent policy to a set of policies related to learning and working environments; it does not replace 
any of the policies. This set of policies align to the requirements of the School Act, reflect the 
diversity our student and staff populations and are intended to foster a sense of belonging, safety 
and wellness for all students and staff. The work to complete Policy AE.BP and initiate the required 
revisions to all related policies is scheduled in the Annual Policy Review Work Plan 2016—2017. This 
policy is intended to be implemented through the policies and administrative regulations that relate 
to and support it. 

 Stakeholder feedback to the first draft of AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and 
Working Environments resulted in minor edits, specifically to the Accountability section of the 
policy. 

 Policies included in the Annual Policy Review Work Plan 2016—2017 that relate to the new parent 
policy AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and Working Environments include:  

Page 11 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

https://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook.pdf
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/c/ch-bp/


 

2 

Recommendation Report 

o AA.BP Stakeholder Relations 
o ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag 
o AD.BP District Vision, Mission, Values, and Priorities 
o AEBB.BP Wellness of Students and Staff 
o AGA.BP Recognition of Students, Staff, Parents, and the Community 
o FA.BP Human Resources Framework 
o FGB.BP Evaluation of Superintendent of Schools 
o GGAB.BP Multicultural Education 
o HA.BP Inclusive Education 
o HAA.BP Aboriginal Education  
o HFA.BP Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity 
o HG.BP Student Behaviour and Conduct 
o HGD.BP Student Suspension and Expulsion 

 Eight of the policies relating to policy AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and 
Working Environments will require minor revisions to ensure alignment to the School Act, 
consistency with language in the draft parent policy, and alignment to the current Board policy 
template. These minor revisions will not alter the intention or direction of these policies. To ensure 
public assurance and transparency, the eight policies requiring minor revisions will be presented for 
approval at a public board meeting within one information report. These policies are listed in 
Attachment II. 

 The six remaining policies relating to policy AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning 
and Working Environments will be revised or reviewed using standard District process to approve 
board policies, including seeking stakeholder input and feedback.  These six policies are listed in 
Attachment II. 

 There are several definitions within the set of policies related to policy AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, 
Safe and Healthy Learning and Working Environments.  For congruence and clarity, these definitions 
have been aggregated into a Glossary of Terms. The Glossary of Terms will be posted separately 
from board policies, and therefore can be updated as terminology evolves, rather than be restricted 
to board policy revision dates. The Glossary of Terms is found in Attachment III. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

1. That Board policy AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and Working 
Environments be considered for the second time. 

2. That Board policy AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and Working 
Environments be considered for the third time and approved. 

3. That the eight identified policies relating to AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy 
Learning and Working Environments requiring minor revisions be revised to ensure alignment 
with the School Act and consistency with the language of AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe 
and Healthy Learning and Working Environments. 
 

OPTIONS  
1. Approve draft Board policy AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and Working 

Environments as written. 
2. Request the Policy Review Committee consider changes to the draft AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, 

Safe and Healthy Learning and Working Environments and bring it back to Board for approval. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS and ANALYSIS 

 All feedback received through the online survey was considered by the Policy Review Committee. 

Page 12 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

3 

Recommendation Report 

There were 74 stakeholder responses to the survey on draft Board policy AE.BP Welcoming, 
Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and Working Environment. A total of 56 respondents completed 
the survey. These responses were comprised of the following self-identified groups: 61 Edmonton 
Public School Board (EPSB) staff members, 10 EPSB parents, two community members, and one 
community organization. Respondents were invited to offer feedback on all sections of the draft 
policy. A minority of respondents offered written feedback pertaining to the following areas: 

o Seven per cent of respondents provided feedback on the Purpose section of the draft policy. 
The feedback focused on the implementation of the policy. 

o Fourteen per cent of respondents provided feedback on the Definitions section of the draft 
policy. The majority of feedback was positive. There were comments indicating a need to 
coordinate definitions across policies, and to provide as much clarity as possible in 
definitions. 

o 23 per cent of respondents provided feedback to the Policy section of the draft policy. Two 
themes that emerged from these comments include the challenge of implementing a policy 
of this nature and the importance of continuing to provide professional support to staff to 
ensure welcoming, inclusive, safe and healthy learning and working environments. 

o 24 per cent of respondents provided feedback to the Accountability section of the draft 
policy. Comments on this section included questions about the metrics to be used to 
measure successful implementation of the policy, and recommendations to provide more 
detail in this section. 

o Additional feedback included questions about the complexities related to the 
implementation and measurement of the policy. 

 
NEXT STEPS 

1. Once approved, policy AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and Working 
Environments will be implemented through the existing policies and administrative regulations 
related to this policy.  

2. A review process for the set of policies related to AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy 
Learning and Working Environments will commence. 

 
ATTACHMENTS and APPENDICES  
ATTACHMENT I  Policy AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and Working   
                                           Environments 
ATTACHMENT II  Annual Policy Development and Review Work Plan 2016-2017 
ATTACHMENT III Glossary of Terms 
 
MB:mb 
 

Page 13 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
 

CODE: AE.BP 
 

TOPIC:  Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and      

 Working Environments 
 

 
PURPOSE   

 
To reflect the Board of Trustees’ (the Board) mandated responsibility and expectation for providing a 

welcoming, inclusive, safe and healthy learning and working environment throughout the District. 

 

AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and Working Environments serves as a 

foundation policy to setting overarching, high level direction to a set of comprehensive policies. The 

policies supported by AE.BP are listed in the References section. 
 
DEFINITIONS 

 
A comprehensive list of terms and definitions for all policies supporting AE.BP can be found in a 

glossary, accessible in the References section. 
 
POLICY 
 

A positive learning environment is foundational for all students to experience success. The Board is 

committed to providing a welcoming, inclusive, safe and healthy learning and working environment that 

respects diversity, fosters a sense of belonging and a positive sense of self. Each student and staff 

member in the District has the right to learn and work in an environment that promotes equality of 

opportunity, dignity, respect and recognition of diversity. 

 

Such an environment creates conditions where students and staff can thrive.  The Board is committed to 

providing an environment that supports the positive mental health of students and staff and reflects 

emerging research related to trauma sensitivity and strength-based approaches, and applies restorative 

principles. 

 

The Board is further committed to providing an environment free from harassment, bullying, 

discrimination and violence. It is the collective responsibility of all those involved with the District, 

including trustees, employees, students, parents, volunteers, contractors and visitors, to create and 

maintain positive cultures within our schools and other educational settings. 
 
ACCOUNTABILITY 

 
The Administration will use relevant data and metrics to inform the Board about the effectiveness of the 

direction established by AE.BP through reporting and accountability related to the theme of welcoming, 

inclusive, safe and healthy learning and working environments.  
 
REFERENCES 

AA.BP – Stakeholder Relations 

ACB.BP – National Anthem and Flag 

AD.BP – District Vision, Mission, Values, and Priorities 

EFFECTIVE DATE: (dd-mm-yyyy) 

ISSUE DATE: (dd-mm-yyyy) 

REVIEW YEAR: (yyyy) 

Board Policy 

Page 14 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
 

AE.AR - Basic Beliefs, Commitments, and Expectations 

AEBB.BP – Wellness of Students and Staff 

AGA.BP – Recognition of Students, Staff, Parents, and the Community 

FA.BP – Human Resources Framework 

FGB.BP – Evaluation of Superintendent of Schools 

GGAB.BP – Multicultural Education 

HA.BP – Inclusive Education 

HAA.BP – Aboriginal Education 

HFA.BP – Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity 

HG.BP – Student Behaviour and Conduct 

HGD.BP – Student Suspension and Expulsion 

Glossary of Terms 

School Act Section 45.1(1) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 15 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



ATTACHMENT II 

 
 

Annual Policy Development and Review Work Plan 2016-2017 

Overarching Theme: Safe and Caring Learning Environments 

Policies to be reviewed under draft “parent policy” AE.BP 
District 
Priority 

Review 
year 

AA.BP  Stakeholder Relations Priority 3 2022 

AD.BP  District Vision, Mission, Values, and Priorities Priority 1 2018 

AEBB.BP  Wellness of Students and Staff Priority 2 2021 

AGA.BP  Recognition of Students, Staff, Parents, and the Community Priority 2 2019 

FA.BP  Human Resources Framework Priority 2 2022 

FGB.BP  Evaluation of Superintendent of Schools Priority 2 2023 

HA.BP  Inclusive Education Priority 1 2019 

HFA.BP  Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity Priority 1 2018 

Policies to be revised using standard District process 

ACB.BP  National Anthem and Flag Priority 2 2017 

AE.BP  Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and Working Environments* Priority 2 TBD 

GGAB.BP  Multicultural Education Priority 1 2016 

HAA.BP  Aboriginal Education Priority 1 2014 

HG.BP  Student Behaviour and Conduct Priority 1 2013 

HGD.BP  Student Suspension and Expulsion Priority 1 2020 

* overarching new draft policy - currently in development 

 

Overarching Theme: District Operations 

Policies to be reviewed using standard District process 
District 
Priority 

Review 
year 

IJA.BP  Electioneering and Politically Motivated Communications Priority 2 2014 

FBD.BP  Vacations and Holidays Priority 2 2016 

Page 16 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
 

 

 

This glossary of terms provides definitions for terms found in board policies related to AE.BP Welcoming, 

Inclusive, Safe and Healthy Learning and Working Environments. These definitions will be updated as 

appropriate. 

 

DEFINITIONS SOURCE 

Aboriginal is defined as First Nation, Non-Status, Métis, Inuit, who are descendants of the original 

inhabitants of Canada.  

HAA.BP 

Aboriginal community refers to Elders, families, parents/guardians, children and other representatives 

of the Aboriginal children who attend Edmonton Public Schools. 

HAA.BP 

Bullying is repeated and hostile or demeaning behaviour by an individual in the school community 

where the behaviour is intended to cause harm, fear or distress to one or more other individuals in the 

school community, including psychological harm or harm to an individual’s reputation. 

School Act 

 

Comprehensive School Health (CSH) is an internationally recognized, evidence-based approach for 

building healthy school communities based on collaboration between home, school and community 

partners.  A CSH approach to effective school health initiatives uses strategies from all four pillars of 

CSH as defined by the Joint Consortium for School Health: 

 Social and Physical Environments includes the quality of the relationships between school 

community stakeholders, the emotional well-being of students and the buildings, grounds, play 

spaces and equipment in and around the school. 

 Teaching and Learning includes resources, activities and curriculum where students gain skills 

and knowledge related to health and wellness. 

 Healthy School Policy includes management practices, decision-making processes, policies and 

procedures that promote and support health and wellness. 

 Partnerships and Services include connections between schools, families, community 

organizations, the health sector and other sectors that support student health. 

AEBB.BP 

Conflict of Interest refers to a situation in which private interests or personal considerations can or may 

appear to affect a staff member’s judgment in acting in the best interest of the District. It includes using 

a staff member’s position, confidential information or corporate time, material or facilities for private 

gain or advancement. A conflict occurs when a situation benefits or appears to benefit any staff member 

or their family, friends or business associates.   

FA.BP 

Discrimination means refusing to provide an opportunity or benefit with respect to access to any term 

or condition of employment because of race, religious beliefs, gender, physical disability, sexual 

orientation, mental disability, marital status, family status, age, ancestry, place of origin, or source of 

income. 
 

The behaviour giving rise to a complaint of discrimination need not be intentional in order to be 

considered discrimination. 
 

With reference to employment, the above does not apply to a refusal, limitation, specification or 

preference based on a bona fide occupation requirement. 

FBCA.AR 

The District is Edmonton Public Schools, which includes the Board of Trustees, central service 

departments and all schools. 

AA.BP 

District Priorities are long-range desired results of the organization established by the Board based on 

the District Vision, Mission and Values. District Priorities are reviewed in consultation with 

stakeholders every four years following the election of the Board.  

FGB.BP 

Expulsion is the term used to describe an action by the Board of Trustees or its delegate, in accordance 

with the School Act s. 25, which for a period of more than 10 days, denies a student access to one or 

more of the following: 

a.       course(s); 

HGD.BP 

Glossary of Terms 

Page 17 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
 

DEFINITIONS SOURCE 

b.      one or more schools; or 

c.       riding in a school bus. 

Harassment occurs when an individual is subjected to unwelcome verbal or physical conduct because 

of race, religious beliefs, gender, physical disability, mental disability, marital status, family status, 

source of income, age, ancestry, colour, place of origin, or sexual orientation. 

 

Examples of harassment which will not be tolerated in Edmonton Public Schools include: verbal or 

physical abuse, threats, derogatory remarks, jokes, innuendo or taunts which allude to any of the above 

categories. Edmonton Public Schools also will not tolerate the display of pornographic, racist or 

offensive signs or images, practical jokes that result in awkwardness or embarrassment, whether indirect 

or explicit. 

FBCA.AR 

Human Resource Strategy is designed to build and develop the skills, attitudes, and behaviours among 

staff that will help the District meet its goals in a manner aligned with its values. It covers the various 

areas of human resource functions such as recruitment, compensation, performance management, reward 

and recognition, employee relations, training, and information management. 

FA.BP 

Internal Controls are the checks and balances established by the District to provide reasonable 

assurance about the achievement of objectives for reliability of human resource reporting, effectiveness 

and efficiency of operations, safeguarding of information, and compliance with applicable laws and 

regulations. 

FA.BP 

A Mission declares the practical commitments and actions that the District believes are needed to 

achieve its vision. 

AD.BP 

Organizational Capability is the ability and capacity of the District expressed in terms of culture, 

system, processes, and resources that support our collective efforts to foster student growth and success.   

FA.BP 

Priorities are broad statements that describe long-range desired results based on the District Vision, 

Mission and Values. 

AD.BP 

Procedural Fairness is a common law doctrine that requires: a person exercising statutory power to 

give some form of notice of a pending decision to a person (parent/guardian and student); an opportunity 

for that person to comment and or be represented; and the requirement that the official making the 

decision be unbiased.  

HGD.BP 

Restorative principles are the foundational beliefs which drive restorative approaches and practices. 

Restorative principles include a focus on relationships, responsibility, accountability, engagement and 

voice. When embedded into a school's culture, the result is a more supportive learning environment 

where both students and staff thrive. 

AE.BP 

Stakeholders are people who contribute to, and have an interest in public education and supporting 

student achievement and well-being within the District. The Education Act uses the phrase “partner(s) in 

education” to describe stakeholders.  Stakeholders include but are not limited to: 

 students, parents and/or guardians, and staff; 

 all members of the Edmonton community including citizens, businesses, agencies, not-for-

profit organizations and service groups; 

 other school boards and educational institutions; and 

 municipal, provincial, federal and international levels of government. 

AA.BP 

Stakeholder Relations is how the District relates to, and interacts with, our stakeholders. The District’s 

approach to stakeholder relations focuses on best practices in communications, engagement and 

collaboration to support meaningful stakeholder participation, as well as strategic and mutually 

beneficial relationships between the District and its stakeholders. The District relies on recognized 

standards for public participation practice, such as the International Association for Public Participation 

(IAP2) Spectrum for Public Participation. It provides a framework for increasing levels of public 

engagement depending on the purpose of stakeholder participation and degree of impact a decision or 

initiative may have on stakeholders. The levels of engagement from IAP2 are: inform, consult, involve, 

collaborate and empower.   

AA.BP 

Page 18 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
 

DEFINITIONS SOURCE 

 

 

 

 

Stakeholder Relationships are defined by the manner or role in which stakeholders engage with the 

District. There are different expectations and parameters for interactions with a student, parent, staff 

member, community connection, donor, funder, partner, sponsor, school council, tenant, vendor or 

volunteer. However, all stakeholder relationships require varying degrees of support and 

communication, and a common understanding of each party’s role and responsibilities. 

  

 A community connection is an individual, business or organization in the community that has 

an informal relationship with a school, for example the owner of the local convenience store and 

the principal connect each August to establish communication and support around students 

patronizing the store; or the seniors centre that invites the school choir to perform for residents 

on special occasions.   

 A donor is an individual, organization or business that voluntarily transfers property, monies, 

goods, or services to the District for charitable reasons and may be eligible for a district 

charitable donation receipt under Canada Revenue Agency regulations.   

 A funder is an individual, organization, business or government that grants money to the 

District for a specified purpose and in exchange the District accepts accountability to the funder 

for performance in relation to the purpose being funded. 

 A parent (or guardian), is an individual who under the Education Act has the right to be 

involved in their child’s education and specific responsibilities to support their child’s 

educational success.  

 A partner is an individual or organization that is a party to a formal partnership with the 

District.  A partnership is one of the most complex relationships founded upon shared values 

and co-created objectives and expectations.  Roles, responsibilities and commitments of each 

partner are clearly articulated and formalized with a written memorandum of understanding and 

binding agreement. Partnership Agreements impose obligations on all parties to the agreement. 

 A school council is a council, established pursuant to the Education Act, for which the majority 

of its members are parents of students who are enrolled in the school.  The Board recognizes a 

school council as the official school-community organization representing the collective 

interests of the parents and students of the school.   

 A staff member is any individual who is employed by the District. 

 A student is an individual who is enrolled in a school. 

 A sponsor is an individual, organization or business that agrees to provide goods, services or 

money to the District in exchange for a defined level of public recognition or advertisement. 

 A tenant is an individual or group that enters into an agreement with the District, as landlord, 

for the use of school space under certain conditions and for a specified period of time.  

 A vendor is an individual or business that provides a service or product to the District in 

exchange for a fee thereby entering into a purchasing contract. 

 A volunteer is a member of the community who, without compensation, commits to assist the 

District or a school with a designated task under the direction and supervision of a district staff 

member. 

 

AA.BP 

District Priorities inform the development of the Strategic Plan which includes strategies, goals and 

measurable outcomes for addressing each priority. The Strategic Plan is implemented in annual planning 

cycles and serves to guide and inform the respective work of the Board, the Superintendent and staff in 

their collective efforts to achieving the District Vision, Mission, Values and Priorities.  

FGB.BP 

Strength-based approaches emphasize an individual's existing strengths, capabilities and resources. AE.BP 

Page 19 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
 

DEFINITIONS SOURCE 

The foundation to strength-based approaches is the belief that all individuals have strengths, resources 

and the ability to recover from adversity. 

Suspension is the term used to describe an action by a principal or teacher authorized under the  School 

Act s. 24 which temporarily denies a student access to one or more of the following: 

a.      one or more class periods; 

b.      one or more courses; 

c.       school; or 

d.      riding in a school bus. 

 

Note: Although a suspension cannot be appealed, a principal can reinstate a student who has been 

suspended.  

HGD.BP 

Trauma sensitivity includes understanding of how trauma affects behaviour and emotions and selecting 

strategies that show empathy and help to create an environment where individuals can learn positive 

ways of handling emotions and relating to others. 

AE.BP 

A Vision is the ideal future state or conditions that the District aspires to change or create. AD.BP 

Values are what anchor the District and are foundational; they are not just a way of doing, but a way of 

being. 

AD.BP 

Violence the threatened, attempted or actual conduct of a person that causes, or is likely to cause, 

physical injury. 

 

Wellness is a balanced state of emotional, intellectual, physical, social and spiritual well-being that 

enables individuals to reach their full potential.  Personal wellness occurs with commitment to a lifestyle 

based on healthy attitudes and actions that honour self and others. 

  

The Alberta Education’s Framework for Kindergarten to Grade 12 Wellness Education, 2009, defines 

the five dimensions of wellness as: 

 

 Emotional wellness is acknowledging, understanding, managing and expressing thoughts and 

feelings in a constructive manner. 

 Intellectual wellness is the development and the critical and creative use of the mind to its 

fullest potential. 

 Physical wellness is the ability, motivation and confidence to move effectively and efficiently in 

a variety of situations, and the healthy growth, development, nutrition and care of the body. 

 Social wellness is relating positively to others and is influenced by many factors including how 

individuals communicate, establish and maintain relationships, are treated by others and 

interpret that treatment.  

 Spiritual wellness is an understanding of one’s own values and beliefs leading to a sense of 

meaning or purpose and a relationship to the community. 

  

AEBB.BP 

FA.BP 

 

 

 

Page 20 of 20 of the March 21, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package


	Agenda
	01 - DRAFT - Board Minutes - March 7, 2017
	02 - Report 3 of the Caucus Committee - From the Meeting Held March 7, 2017
	04 - Motion re Government of Alberta Allocation of Captial Project Funding
	05 - Policy AE.BP Welcoming, Inclusive, Safe and Healthly Learning and Working Environments



